&3‘; . e 3 '! S

EZZ STEEL REPORTS CONSOLIDATED FY 2021 RESULTS
Cairo, 02 March 2022 — Ezz Steel (EGX: ESRS; London Stock Exchange: AEZD), the largest independent
producer of steel in the MENA region and market leader in Egypt, today announced its consolidated results for
the period ending 31 December 2021. The audited results have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian

Accounting Standards.

Key Highlights

EGP Mn
FY 2021 FY 2020
[l Netsales 67,819 38,625
of which Exports (US$ Mn) $1,291 $458
[l Gross profit 13,770 1,220
[l EBITDA* 12,870 535
[l Net profit before tax** 7,172 (4,963)
[1 Net profit 5,398 (4,685)
[l Earnings per share (EPS)*** 6.61 (5.85)

* EBITDA = sales — cost of goods sold — selling & marketing expense — G&A expense + depreciation and
amortisation

**  Deferred Taxes amounted to EGP 844mn; and Income Taxes to EGP 930mn

*** EPS = Net profit after tax & Minority Interest / No. of shares at the end of the period, for the 6 months period ending 30
December



For further information:

Ezz Steel
Ahmed Nabil +20 2 27989844 +20 100 177 7703
Haya Azab +20 2 27989900 +20 122 998 8739
Comment

Commenting on the results, the board issued the following notes to the shareholders:

e Sales amounted to EGP 67,819 million compared to the EGP 38,625 million recorded in FY20. Rebar
sales constituted 54% of total sales, and HRC sales 45%. Sales totalled EGP 18,763 million during 4Q21.

o Ezz Steel achieved a record export sales value in FY21. Exports amounted to USD 1,291 million, of
which Hot Rolled Coil (HRC) sales contributed USD 1,079 million and Wire Rod sales USD 212 million.
Exports sales during 4Q21 amounted to USD 277 million, of which HRC sales contributed USD 257
million and Wire Rod sales USD 20 million.

o Net profit before tax reached EGP 7,123 billion in FY21. This is compared to a loss of EGP 4,963 million
in FY20. Deferred tax and income tax for FY21 were EGP 1,774 million; net profit after tax therefore
reached EGP 5,432 million for the year.

e The positive contribution of Ezz Flat Steel (EFS) and Ezz Rolling Mills (ERM), wholly owned by Ezz
Dekheila Steel, Alexandria (EZDK), continued following the group’s restructuring. Both companies
achieved a combined net profit amounting to EGP 1,330 million during FY21 of which EGP 403 million
during 4Q21. Their profits are reflected in the net profit of EZDK, and thus on the consolidated net profit
of Ezz Steel.

e  World production of steel increased to 1,911 million tons in FY21, 1.8% higher than FY20. Mainly due
to China’s stricter environmental measures and imposed credit limitations on its real estate sector,
world production in 2H21 (909 Mn tons) was lower than that of 1H21 (1002 Mn tons).

e Local rebars consumption reached 7.344 million tons in 2021, an increase of 7% over the 6.865 million
tons consumed in 2020. Worth noting that local consumption in 4Q21 made an upward correction
rising 27% above 3Q21 with the momentum of national projects continuing. In particular “Decent Life
Project” to upgrade over 4700 villages is progressing quickly and boosting demand. Growth pace in
private building consumption is also picking up.

e  With Ezz Steel once again assuming an important position as a flat steel exporter in 2021, it has
become necessary to maximise flat production from Ezz Flat Steel (EFS) at the expense of rebars
production. The company’s rebar sales accordingly decreased from 3.175 million tons in FY20 to 2.936
million tons in FY21, in spite of an increasing local market consumption. This prompted Ezz Steel to
build a second meltshop in EFS. Once operative, smooth simultaneous, rather than alternating,
production of flat steel and rebars would be achieved enabling the company to seize a growth

opportunity.



e  Construction and erection of the second meltshop in EFS are making good progress. Start-up is
scheduled in 4Q22 with full capacity to be reached in 1Q23. The 1.6 million ton per year meltshop will
cost approximately EGP 3.2 billion, being financed from EGP 1 billion internally generated funds and a
EGP 2.2 billion syndicated bank loan. The project will integrate with the downstream casting and
rolling plants already in place.

e  Ezz Steel efforts to increase the awareness and market its BSOOWDR high tensile steel rebars is paying
off. In-house led market survey showed that not only the company’s strong branding, but also the
properties and cost savings such superior steel grade provides, contribute to the product’s price
premium in the market.

o Local flat steel consumption reached 1.421 million tons in 2021. Though this is lower than the 1.563
million tons of 2020, it remains at a higher level than recent years which hovered around the 1.2 million
tons per year. Ezz Steel market share grew from 676k tons in 2020 to 906k tons in 2021 having
substituted a portion of imports. As local consumption is considerably lower than Ezz Steel’s flat
production capacity, the company continues to balance its commitment as the anchor supplier to the
local market, with its role as a leading exporter.

e In December 2021, EZDK’s board approved the purchase of 18% of the total equity of “Egyptian
Steel” for a total value of EGP 2.5 billion; to be paid from EZDK’s own resources. The transaction was
made in January 2022 (after the fiscal year); 50% the amount was paid, and the balance will be paid in
two equal instalments after 12 and 24 months from the transaction date. This marks an important and
strategic investment initiative by Ezz Steel.

About Ezz Steel

Ezz Steel is the largest steel producer in the Arab World and North Africa according to the World Top Steel
Makers for 2020 published by World Steel Association (WSA). The Company is the Egyptian market leader with
a total capacity of 7 million tonnes of finished steel products per annum. Ezz Steel was established on 2/4/1994

as an Egyptian joint stock company in accordance with the provisions of Law No. 159 for the year 1981.

In 2021, the Company produced 2.9 million tonnes of long products (typically used in construction) and 2.1
million tonnes of flat products (typically used in engineering industries, automotive, steel pipes and consumer
products). Ezz Steel deploys the latest in modern steel-making technology and is committed to further increasing

vertical integration across its plants, boosting operational flexibility.



Operational Review

All of the below financial breakdowns are based on Ezz Steel’s consolidated financials, which include the
consolidated financial performance of EZDK. Following the latter’s acquisition of EFS/ERM, both are full
subsidiaries of EZDK.

Sales

Consolidated net sales for FY 2021 were EGP 67,819 million compared to EGP 38,625 million in FY2020.

Ezz Steel EZDK Ezz Steel
EGPMn* Standalone Consolidated Consolidated
Long 11,207 25,388 36,595
Flat - 30,527 30,527
Others - 697 697
Total 11,207 56,612 67,819

*after the elimination of intercompany transactions.

Long steel products accounted for EGP 36.6 billion, or 54% of sales in FY 2021, while flat steel products
represented 45% of sales at EGP 30.5 billion. Long product exports accounted for 9% of total long sales. Flat

product exports accounted for 56% of total flat sales.

Sales Value

EGPMn Domestic % Export %
Long 33,259 91% 3,336 9%
Flat 13,526 44% 17,001 56%

Long sales volumes were 2.9 million tonnes during FY 2021 and flat sales were 2 million tonnes. In 4Q21, long

sales volume was 839 thousand tonnes, 3% below that of 4Q20 which was 863 million tonnes.
The group’s consolidated sales volumes totalled 4.9 million tonnes in FY 2021.

Production

Long steel production volumes totalled 2.9 million tonnes during FY 2021.

Flat steel production volumes reached 2.1 million tonnes for the period.



Cost of Goods Sold

Consolidated Cost of Goods Sold for FY 2021 represented 80% of sales. Gross profit margin reached 20% in FY
2021.

Ezz Steel Standalone reported a COGS/Sales ratio of 89% for FY 2021.

ESR EZDK Ezz Steel
EGPMn* Standalone Consolidated Consolidated
Sales 11,207 56,612 67,819
COGS 10,009 44,039 54,048
COGS/Sales 89% 78% 80%

*after the elimination of intercompany transactions

Gross profit

Gross profit of 13.8 billion was recorded for FY 2021 for Ezz Steel consolidated, compared to the EGP 1.2 billion
recorded in FY 2020.

EBITDA

Ezz Steel consolidated EBITDA for FY 2021 amounted to EGP 12.9 billion compared to EGP 535 million in FY
2020.

Tax

During FY 2021, Ezz Steel had deferred taxes in the amount of EGP 844 million and income tax of EGP 930
million.

Net profit

Net profit reached EGP 5.4 billion in FY 2021.

Net result after tax and minority interests

Net result after tax and minority interests recorded a profit of EGP 3.5 billion for FY 2021.

Liquidity and capital resources

At the end of the period, Ezz Steel had cash on hand of EGP 3.5 billion and net debt of EGP 31.4 billion.



Outlook

Industry analysts forecast an increase in global steel production by 0.8% in 2022 to 1.933 billion tons.
China’s production in 2022, however, is forecasted to remain at the same level of 2021. As an exporter,
Ezz Steel would benefit from an increasing demand and consumption as markets have opened up in the
aftermath of the Corona pandemic. On the cost side, China’s determination to maximise the use of
scrap in steel production would reduce its iron ore consumption and, hence, dampen iron ore price
increase.

Domestic consumption of rebars is expected to continue to grow in 2022 as well. National projects,
including “Decent Life Project” are progressing in a dynamic pace; private building is also picking up.
Local rebar consumption in 2022 is forecasted to grow by 14% to 8.4 million tons. Local consumption
of flat steel in 2022 is expected to grow by 7% to 1.5m tons, also supported by national projects.

With the increase in crude steel output as EFS’s new meltshop commences operation in Sokhna, Suez,
Ezz Steel will be able to enhance its supply capacity — especially of rebars — and consolidate its market
position, without compromising its flat exports.

Ezz Steel follows closely the international inclination to apply the Carbon Tax, especially in Europe, and
its effect on steel markets. The company looks forward to maximising the return on its exports in view
of its distinctive position with a lower carbon footprint compared to most producers. This stems from the
production technologies adopted by Ezz Steel, which rely primarily on reduction using natural gas and
melting in electric arc furnaces. Carbon emissions are therefore considerably lower than that from blast

furnaces which is responsible for about 72% of world production.



Divisional Overview

EZDK Standalone

Sales (EGP): FY 2021 FY 2020 Q32021 Q4 2021
Value: | Mn 47,931 34,409 12,804 15,375
Volume:
Long: | 000 Tonnes 2,059 2,126 524 610
Flat: | 000 Tonnes 1,097 1,030 253 266
Exports as % of Sales:
Long: 13% 12% 19% 4%
Flat: 51% 42% 57% 52%
EBITDA: { Mn 7,928 1,356 1,784 2,228
Production:
Long Products: | 000 Tonnes 1,859 1,590 471 424
Flat Products: { 000 Tonnes 1,101 1,039 281 268
Billets: { 000 Tonnes 2,090 1,687 527 543
Ezz Steel Standalone FY 2021 FY 2020 Q32021 Q4 2021
Sales (EGP):
Value: | Mn 13,170 6,835 4,196 4,187
Volume: | 000 Tonnes 905 777 246 261
Exports as % of Sales: - - - -
EBITDA: | Mn 905 59 227 236
Production:
Long Products: | 000 Tonnes 839 767 225 194
Billets: { 000 Tonnes 867 802 208 218




EZDK Consolidated FY 2021 FY 2020 Q32021 Q4 2021
Sales (EGP):
Value: | Mn 61,218 33,967 17,322 17,384
Volume:
Long: { 000 Tonnes 2,106 2,413 521 619
Flat: | 000 Tonnes 1,997 1,297 505 454
Exports as % of Sales:
Long: 13% 10% 19% 4%
Flat: 56% 48% 61% 52%
EBITDA: | Mn 12,051 512 3,079 3,390
EBT { Mn 6,757 (4,288) 1,822 2,221
Net Profit | Mn 5,837 (4,676) 1,175 1,840
Production:
Long Products: | 000 Tonnes 2,065 2,358 501 539
Flat Products: { 000 Tonnes 2,051 1,336 534 472
Billets: | 000 Tonnes 2,125 2,393 527 543
Ezz Steel
Consolidated FY 2021 FY 2020 Q32021 Q4 2021
Sales (EGP):
Value: | Mn 67,819 38,625 18,639 18,762
Volume:
Long: | 000 Tonnes 2,936 3,175 742 839
Flat: | 000 Tonnes 1,997 1,297 505 454
Exports as % of Sales:
Long: 9% 8% 14% 3%
Flat: 56% 48% 61% 52%
EBITDA: | Mn 12,870 535 3,303 3,579
EBT { Mn 7,172 (4,963) 1,946 2,306
Net Profit | Mn 5,398 (4,685) 1,363 1,638
Production:
Long Products: | 000 Tonnes 2,904 3,126 727 733
Flat Products: { 000 Tonnes 2,051 1,336 534 472
Billets: { 000 Tonnes 2,992 3,195 735 761




Disclaimer:

This press release is issued by Ezz Steel (formerly: Al Ezz Steel Rebars S.A.E.) the “Company”, in connection
with the disclosure of the Company’s financial results for the quarter ending 31 December 2021. This press release
includes forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical
facts. In particular, the statements regarding the Company's strategy, the expected strength of demand for long
and flat products in Egypt and in regional and international markets, and other future events or prospects are
forward looking statements. Recipients of this document should not place undue reliance on forward looking
statements because they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that are in many cases
beyond the control of the Company. By their nature, forward looking statements involve risks and uncertainties
because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and the Company's actual results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which the Company operates may differ
materially from those expressed in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in this document. The
cautionary statements set forth above should be considered in connection with any subsequent written or oral
forward-looking statements that the Company, or persons acting on its behalf, may issue. Various factors could
cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements in this
document including worldwide economic trends, global and regional trends in the steel industry, the economic
and political climate of Egypt and the Middle East, changes in the business strategy of the Company, and various
other factors. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company's judgment at the date of this document and
are not intended to give any assurances as to future results. The Company undertakes no obligation to update these
forward-looking statements, and it will not publicly release any revisions it may make to these forward-looking
statements that may result from events or circumstances arising after the date of this document. None of Ezz Steel,
any of its directors, officers or employees or any other person can give any assurance regarding the future accuracy
of the information set forth herein or as to the actual occurrence of any predicted developments. Furthermore, no
such parties shall assume, and each of them expressly disclaims, any obligation (except as required by law or the
rules of the ESE, the LSE or the FCA) to update any forward-looking statements or to conform these forward-
looking statements to Ezz Steel's actual results.
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Translation from Arabic

independent Auditor's Report On Consolidated Financial Statements
To The Shareholders Of Ezz Steel (S.A.E)

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ezz Steel Company {S.A.E), which-are
represented in the consolidated statement of financial position in December 31, 2021, as weil as the consolidated
statements of income and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows for
the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes.

Management's Responsihility For The Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management, as the management
is responsible for preparing and presenting the consclidated financial statements in a fair and clear presentation in
accordance with Egyptian accounting standards and in fight of the Egyptian laws in force. Significant and effactive
misstatements, whether resuiting from fraud or error, and this responsibility includes selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates appropriate to the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is limited to expressing an opinion on these consolidated financial statements in the light of our
review of them. We have been audited in accordance with the Egyptian auditing standards and in light of the
Egyptian laws in force. These standards require us to comply with the requirements of professional conduct and to
plan and perform the audit to obiain appropriate assurance that the financial statements are free from any errors.
important and influential.

The audit includes performing procedures to obfain audit evidence regarding values and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Internal control related to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial
statements and their falr and clear presentation in order to design audit procedures appropriate to the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efficiency of the intemal control in the entity.
in which the consolidated financial statements are presented.

We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate and is an appropriate basis
for expressing our opinicn on the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financiat statements of for the year ended December 31, 2020, was audited by another auditor
who expressed an Unqualified opinion on those statements on April 1, 2021.

Qur Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above express fairly and clearly, and in all their
important aspects, the financial position of Ezz Steel Company (S.A.E) on December 31, 2021 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year ending on that date, in accordance with Egyptian accounting
standards In light of the Egyptlan laws and regulations related to the preparation of these consolidated fi nanmal
statements

sl
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Emphasis Of Matters

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:
As shown in detail in note Ne. (1-3) of the notes supplementing the consolidated financial statements, the
campany and its subsidiaries achieved retained lossss until December 31, 2021, amounting to 11,901 hillion L.E,

“included in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the increase in liabilities over assets (deficit). In
equity) amounting to 3.587 billion L.E on that date, as Al-Ezz Flat Steel Industry (a stubsidiary company) achieved
a net profit of 2.6 billion L.E, which led to a decrease in the total losses carried over until December 31, 2021 to
9.5 billion L.E. A deferred tax asset of 563 millicn L.E was recorded from if, and Al-Ezz Rolling Mills Company (a
subsidiary company) achieved retained losses until December 31, 2021, amounting to 5.891 billion L.E, of which a
deferred fax asset amounted to 508.6 million L..E was recorded. Thus, the total of these deferred tax assets
amounted to 1.071 bilion L.E, which are included in the deferred tax assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position on that date. years, in addition to a plan with the support of Al-Ezz Dekheila Stesl Company -
Alexandria (subsidiary company) to obtain the necessary support and financing for operation, which wili positively
affect the operational and financial indicators in the coming years and to benefit from the staged tax losses, which
depend on the realization of the future assumptions on which it was made. Preparing the estimated budget
mentioned above.

As shown in detail in note No. (35-3-1) of the notes supplementing the consolidated financial statements; the
value of tax claims claimed by the Tax Authority, Al-Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria (a subsidiary)
amounted to 219 million L.E, according to the forms received on February 17, 2011, other than the delay
consideration for the value of the tax on the previous steel flat project, which had been exempted from tax for the
years 2000-2004.

The management of the subsidiary believes that the company has already been taxed for those years, and it was
agreed by the intemal committee with referring a dispute point related to canceling the development fee on the
exempted movable container to the Appeal Committee. On June 12, 2010, the Appeal Committee issued its
decision to cancel the development feé on the exempt movable container while remaining Other exempted tax
bases for the years of confiict, and the tax due has been paid in full based on the decision of the intemal
committee, and thus the dispute has ended by agreement and has become final and final.

The management of the subsidiary company and its legal advisor consider the stability of the tax position of the
company due to the issuance of the decision of the Appeal Committee in favor of the company, and that the
position of the company has been legally fortified, and the Tax Authority may not return to the dispute regarding
those years.

Al-Ezz Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria has agreed with the Tax Authority to lift the seizure signed on the
company as a result of the above dispute. The amounts paid amounted to 254 miltion L.E, including 35 million L.E
in return for a delay.

The management of the subsidiary company believes that this procedure does not change the legal and-tax
position of the company, and that it reserves the right to recover what was paid immediately after a court ruling is
issued in favor of the company in Case No. 405 of 2011. At the present time, it Is difficult to determine the
obligations that the company may bear unill a decision is made in this case.




u MOORE Egypt

As explained in detail in nate No. (38-2) of the notes to the consolidated financial statements, , there is a dispute
raised between Ezz El Dekheila Steel Company - Alexandria - {a subsidiary company) and the Sales Tax
Authority regarding the value of the additional sales tax for the right to use berth equipment Mining and raw

&

materlals handling at Dekheila port amounting to 127,56 million L.E, until June 28, 2012, when the subsidiary paid
the original tax amounting to 104 million L.E on October 3, 2012 with reservation of payment until the Sales Tax
Authority stops all procedures, according to which the Port Authority will stop all procedures against the subsidiary

——

company, including lifting the seizure on the balances of the subsidiary company with various banks.
. J
[ However, the subsidiary’s management paid an amount of L.E 127,5 million which represents the additionat tax

claimed, along with its right to maintain a reservation on the settlement. Accordingly, Alexandria Port Authority

notified the banks to lift the administrative attachment imposed on the company's balances at the said banks in
favor of the Port Authority.

Based on the opinion of its tax advisor, the subsidiary company’s management is of the opinion that Alexandria
Port Authority is not entitied to claim the company to pay sales tax in return for right of use of the equipment of
mining ores dock related to the handling of ores in El - Dekhella Port, the occupation of the yards allocated for this

purpose and carrying out the works of operation and maintenance necessaty for such equipment due to the fact
that they are not subjecied to sales tax. Furthemmore, the payment of such amount by the company to Alexandria
Port Authority, either at the present time or in the future, as a tax in return for the same service, does not mean its
approval of subjecting the service to taxation along with the continuity of legal proceedings taken by the company
to confirm the fact that such service is not subjected to sales tax.

Cairo, Egypt
March 2, 2022

Bt

Sherin Noureldin
{RAA 6809}
{EFSA 88)
Moore Egypt
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Ezz Steel Company

(5.A.E})

Translation from Arabic

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of:

Income tax liabilities

Liability of the supplementary pension schems
Provisions

Total current liabilities

"Fotal liabitities
Totial shareholder's equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to no. (41} form a f. !

Managing Director
Mr. Hassan Ahmed Nouh

Note
No,
Non-Current Assets
Fixed assets (Net) (11-13
Projects under construction (12)
Long term investments (13)
Deferred tax assets (31-1)
Long term lending to others (14)
Other assets (15
Goodwill {(40-9)
Total non-current asseis
Current Assets
Inventory (16}
Trade and notes receivable {an
Debtors and other debit balances (18)
Suppliers - advance payments
Investments in treasury bills (40-8)
Cash and cash equivalents (20)
Total current assets
Total Assets
Shareholders’ Equity
Issued and paid - up capita {21-2)
Reserves (22)
Modification surplus of fixed assets {11-3)
Retained losses
Treasury stocks (23)
Beficit in holding company shareholders’ equity
Non-controliing interest
. Deficit in shareholders' equity
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term loans (28)
Long-term liabilities (30)
Finance lease liabilities (29)
Deferred tax liabilities (31-1)
Total non-current liabilities
Current Liabilities
Banks - overdraft (20)
Credit facilities and loan installments due within one year (28)
Finance lease liabilities due within one year (29)
Trade and notes payable (24)
Customers - advance payments
Creditors and other credit balances (25)

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
LE (000) LE. (000)
22 202 469 23291 803
1585312 212 660
5621 4721
1258053 2 120 703
47632 45 380
30 735 35 858
315214 315 214
25 445 036 26 626 339
9 518 954 6676756
4795988 2875782
5849 771 4404 704
802 659 331373
132 261 249732
3479 155 2223 086
24 578 788 16 761 433
50 023 824 42 787 772
2716 325 2716325
182 090 182 090
1335 620 1446 615
(11 901 253) (15527 223)
( 82302) (71 921)
(7749 520) (11254 114)
4162 472 2291033
(3 587 948) (8 963 081)
12 432 596 11 634 621
3436 595 3717624
291 211 365994
3 643 486 3 661 950
19 803 888 19 380 189
270 398 155949
22132 212 22 812 438
73321 64 566
5301 611 5181826
1 708 783 1008 553
2 686 292 2738 194
529 489 34304
25 101 20771
679 777 354063
33 896 984 32 370 664
53 610 872 51 750 853
50 023 824 42787 712




Ezz Steel Company
S.AE

Consolidated Statement of Income

For The Financial Year Erded 31 December:

Sales (het)

Less :

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Add / (Less):

Other operating revenues

Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative and general expeﬁses
Other operating expenses

Operating profit (loss)

Add / (Less):

Finance income

Finance cost

Foreign currency exchange {losses} gains
Net finance cost '

Net profit (loss) for the year before income tax
(Lessy/Add: '
Income tax

Deferred tax

Total Income Tax

Net loss for the vear

Attributable to:

QOwners of the holding company

Non-controlling inferest

MNet profit (loss) for the year

Basic and diluted prefit (loss) per sharve for the year (LE/share)

Note
No.

(40-18)

)

“

(5

(6}
Q)

&)
8
&)

(31-2)

®

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
LE (000) LE (000
67818 516 38625212
(54 048 213) (37 405 403)
13 770 303 1219 809
80 094 105 669
( 948 077) ( 603 787)
(1403 979) (1517361)
(1177238) ( 227 940)
10321 103 (1023 610)
136 838 94 847
{3391 597) (3899 231)
105 425 ( 135282)
(3 149 334) (3 939 666)
7171 769 (4 963 276)
( 929 832) ( 35 539)
( 844 186) 313 958
(1774 018) 278 419
5397751 {4 684 857)
3521 623 (3119 045)
1876 128 (1565 812)
5397751 (4 684 857)
6.61 ( 5.84)

The accompanying netes from no. {1} to no. (41) form are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Ezz Steel Company

i (S.AF)
- Consolidated Statement of Comprekensive Income
] For The Financial Year Ended 31 December :
L 311272021 31/12/2020
. i LE (000) LE (600)
i Net profit / (loss) for the year 5397 751 (4 684 857}

(Less)/Add:

Qther comprehensive income items

Realized portion of modification surplus of fixed assets
171 184 174 467
(transferred to retained losses during the year) ( ) ( )

ﬁ Actuarial (losses) /earnings from pension scheme ( 4227) 3907
Total comprehensive income 5222340 (4 855 417)

E Attributable to;
Owners of the holding company 3407 920 {3229 786)
. Non-controlling interest 1 814 420 (1625 631)
5222 340 (4855417)

The accompanying notes from no. (1) to no. (41) form are an integral part of these consolidated financial statement
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Ezz Steel Company
(8.A.K)

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows

For The Financial Year Ended 31 Decernbert

Translation from Arabic

Note  12/31/2021 12/31/2020
No. LE{000) LE(000)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit / (loss) for the year before income tax 7171769 (4963 276)
Adjustments to reconeile Net losses to net cash
used in operating activities
Depreciation {11-1) 1446 502 1431 468
Amortization of other assets (15} 5123 5123
Amortization of accrued interest on treasury bills ( 29 485) ( 22 286)
Amortization of the difference from the change in the fair value of the long term ( 1838) ( 3363)
Capital (losses} (4) ( 900} { 493)
Impairment loss on assets (N 52 820 2524
Interest & finance costs {8 3391597 3 899 231
Provisions formed during the year (N 340990 130 625
Differences of changing in liability of the supplementary pension (26} 31687 28 578
Financial grants for the development of the gas station ( 909)- ( 897)
Foreign currency exchange differences ( 81 236) 86 452
12326 520 593 686
Changes in working capital
Inventory (2 839 863) 1150 320
Trade receivables, debtors and other debit balances 1767179 (9 802 808)
Trade payables, creditors and other credit balances {3366 935) 11 218 256
Change in lending to employees { 2382} 12 84¢
Liability of the supplementary pension scheme { 7070} { 7795)
Net 7877 449 3164 499
Finance interests paid (3761191) (2894 371)
Income tax paid ( 34304) { 69276}
Used impairment of assets - ( 1348)
Used provisions ( 400) { 3092)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 4 031 554 196 412
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for purchase of fixed assets and projects under construction ( 1730 340) { 377719)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 855 -
Payments for purchase of investments in subsidiaries ( 900) { 636)
Payments for purchase treasury stocks ( 15208) -
Proceeds from refrieval of financial investments (freasury bllls) 722 246 506 650
Payments for purchase of financial investments (treasury bills) ( 578 540) { 637043)
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (1601387 ( 508 748)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments for credit facilities (1671756) (2043715
Proceeds from loans and other liabilities 404 681 2726274
Finance lease payments { 66029) ( 39161)
Change in: time-deposits and restricted current accounts 8214 37 565
Paid dividends to non-controlling interest ( 2162) (2920)
Paid dividends to employees and Board of Directors ( 2781) ( 3536)
Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities (1329 833) 674 507
Change in cash and cash equivalents during the year 1149834 362171
" Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (20) 1926 864 1567 109
Translation differences of financial statements of foreign entities - ( 2416)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {20) 3076 698 1926 864

The accompanying notes from no, (1) to no. (41) form are an integral part of these conselidated financial statements.
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Translation from Arabic

Fzz Steel Company
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. BACKGROUND

—
1.1  Basic Information
- Al Ezz Steel Rebars Company “an Egyptian Joint Stock Company” was established under the
(] provisions of Law No. 159 of 1981 and was registered in the Commercial Register in Menofia.
) Governorate under No. 472 on April 2, 1994, The preliminary establishment contract and the
Company's statute were published in the Companies® Gazette issue No. 231 of April 1994, The
“l Company is located in Sadat City.

. The term of the company is 25 years from the date of registration of the company in the
commercial register, On October 24, 2018, the Company's Extraordinary General Assembly
decided to extend the company’s term for another 25 years starting from April 2, 2019. The
necessary procedures are being taken to amend the Company's Coramercial Register in this regard.

- The Extra-ordinary General Assembly in its meeting dated October 3, 2009 approved to change
the Company’s name to “Ezz Steel”, this amendment was registered in the Commercial Registry
on November 1, 2009,

- The Company is located in 35 Lebanon Street— El Mohandseen — Cairo — Arab Republic of Egypt.

- The nominal shares of the company are being fraded in the Egyptian stock exchange and London
stock exchange.

1.2 Subsidiaries

Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (ERM) — an Egyptian joint Stock Company — was established
in 1986 under Law No. 43 of 1974, which was replaced by Law No. & of 1997, which was
replaced by Law No. 72 of 2017 by issuance investment law. -

Al Ezz Kl Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDX) — an Egyptian Joint Stock Company — was
established in 1982 as a Joint Investment Company under Law No. 43 of 1974 which was replaced
by Law No. 8 of 1997, adjusted by Law No. 72 of 2017 by issuance investment law.

Al Fzz El Delheila for Steel - Alexandria (8ZDK) has the following subsidiaries:

Al Ezz Tlat Steel Company (EEFS) — an Egyptian Joint Stock Company — was established in
1998 under the provisions of the Investment Guarantees and Incentives Law No. 8 of 1997, which
was replaced Law No. 72 of 2017 by issuance investment law.

Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel Company (Contra Steel) — an Kgyptian

' joint stock compary - was established according to the decree of the specialized committee in the
Ministry of Economy and Foreign Trade (corporate fine) under the provisions of Law No. 159 of
1981. :

Misr for Pipes & Casting Industry Company — an Egyptian joint steck company — was
established in August 29, 1992 under the provisions of Law No. 159 of 1981.

1.3 The Purpose of the Company and its subsidiaries

The Company and its subsidiaries purpose is the manufacturing, trading and distribution of iron
7 and steel products of all kinds and associated products and services. ‘

L. The following is an analysis of investments in the subsidiary Companies of Ezz Stesl Company
which are included in the Congolidated Financial Statements:

-11-
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Transiation frem Arabic

3 —3

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)
31/12/2021 31/12/2420
Percentage Shaie Percentape Share
Y %

Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company (ERM)

64.061 (Direct and Indirect)
through Al Ezz El Dekheila

64.061 (Direct and Indirect)
through Al Ezz El Dekheila

Al Ezz El Dekheila For Steel - Alexandria 64.06 Direct 64.06 Direct
(EZDK)
Al Ezz Flat Steel (EFS) 64.06 (Direct & Indirect) 64.06 (Direct & Indirect)
Through Al Ezz Bl Dekheila  Through Al Ezz El Dekkeila
TIron for Industrial, Trading and 57.657 (Indirect) 57.657 (Indirect)
Constructing Steel Company (Contra Steel)  Through Al Ezz El Dekheila  Through Al Ezz El Dekheila

Misr for Pipes & Casting Industry
Company

55.16 (Indirect)
Through Al Ezz El Dekheila

55.16 {Indirect)
Through Al Ezz Fl Dekheila

The main financial indicators for the company and some of its subsidiaries:

- The subsidiaries company have incurred retained losses amounted to L.E 11,901 Billion as of
December 31, 2021 included in company’s consolidated statement of financial position, also its
liabilities exceed its assets (Deficit in Sharcholder’s Equity) with an amount of L.E 3.587
Billion at that date, as Al Ezz Flat Steel company (EFS) -subsidiary company- has incurred
accumulated retained losses till December 31, 2021 with an amount of LE 9.489 Billion, which
deferred tax asset was recognized for it at that date with an amount of
LE 563 Million, Also Al Ezz Rolling Mills company (ERM) -subsidiary company- has incurred
accumulated retained losses till December 31, 2021 amounted to LE 5.991 Billion, which
deferred  tax asset was recognized for it at that date with an amount of
LE 508.6 Million, hence the total amount of these deferred tax assets is amounted to
LE 1.071 Billion stated in deferred tax assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
at that date. The company's management has prepared a budget for the years from 2021 to 2026
in which it adopts the achievement of profit and improves the results of operations during these
years, in addition to a plan of obtaining the support and financing required for operations from
Al Ezz El Dekheila For Steel — Alexandria (subsidiary company), which will reflect positively
on the operational and financial indicators in the subsequent years, and to have the tax benefits
of the tax carried forward losses.

1.4 Tssuance of Conselidated Financial Statements

- These Consolidated Financial Statements were approved by the company’s BOD for issuance on
March 2, 2022,

2. Basis for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

2.1  Statement of compliance

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards and in light of Egyptian laws and regulations related to.

2.2  Basis of measurement
These Consolidated Financial Staiements are prepared on the historical cest convention, except
Y for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value.

; During 2016, the Group’s management adopted the special accounting treatment stated in annex
. (A} of the modified Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13) “The Effects of Changes in Foreign
- Exchange Rates”, the cost and accumulated depreciation of some fixed assets categories are
g modified using modification factors which are stated in the above-mentioned annex, as described
d in details in (Note no. 40-2).

7 2.3 Tunctienal and presentation currency
i These Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in thousands of Egvptian pounds
. 12 -
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Egyptian
Accounting Standards requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and Liabilities, income and
expenses and the actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the current circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any differences to
accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimate is revised if these
differences affect the year of the revision and future periods then these differences are recognized
in the year of the revision and future periods.

And the following represents the most significant items in which assumption and professional
judgment have been made:

Impairment loss on assets.

Recognition of deferred tax assets.
Contingencies, liabilities and Provisions.
Operational useful life of fixed assets.

H*O% ¥ X

Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is determined based on the market value of financial
instruments or similar financial instruments at the financial position without deducting any
estimated future costs of sale. Financial assets values are determined at current prices for the
purchase of those asscts, while determining the value of financial liabilities at the current prices,
which would settle those commitments.

In the absence of an active market to determine the fair value of financial instruments, the fair
value is estimated using various valuation techniques, taking into account recent transactions
prices, guided by the current fair value of other substantially similar instruments - discounted -
cash flow method - or any other methods to produce reliable results.

When using the discounted cash flow meihod as a method of evaluation, future cash flows are
estimated based on the best estimate of the management. Discount rate used is determined in the
light of the prevailing market price at the date of the financial positon for financial instruments
similar in nature and terms. ‘

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include assets, liabilities and result of operations of Ezz
Steel Company (Flolding Comapany) and all subsidiary companies which are controlled by the
Holding Company, the Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has right to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has ability to affect those returns through ifs
power over the investee.

All inter-Company balances, transactions and unrealized profits were eliminated.

Now-controlling interest in the net equity and in net earnings of subsidiaties are included in a
separate item “non-controlling interest” in the Consolidated Financial Statements, and is
calculated to be equivalent to their share in the carrying amount of the subsidiaries net assets at
the date of the Consolidated Financiat Statements. Non-controlling share in profits and losses of
the subsidiary companies are included in a separate Jine item in the consolidated statement of
income.

The provided profit and losses from acquisition or selling shares from non-controlling interest
without changing of the holding Company’s control, it’s directly stated in the sharehoiders’
equity.

-13-
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Ezz Steel Company

Transiation from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

3. COST OF SALES

Raw Materials

Salarics & wages

Fixed assets depreciation

Other assets amortization
Supplementary pension scheme cost
Manufacturing overhead expenses
Mapufacturing cost

Note
Ng.

(11-1)
(15)

Change in inventory—finished products and work in process

2621 2020
LE (000) LE {8006}
38 395 588 21 679432

2262 206 2025044

1 405384 1 386 805
5123 5123

24 865 22 442

12 819 555 11324271
549812721 36443117
(864 508) 962 286
54 048 213 37 405 403

4. OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 'F’

M
§
ﬂ 2021 2020
g

LE (600) LE (000
Capital gains 900 493
Other revenues 79194 105176
80094 105 669

5. SELLING & MARKET]ING EXPENSES

Nete 2021 2020
No. LE (600) LE (000}
Salaries & wages 120 851 101 635
Advertising expenses 92 845 166 432
Fixed assets depreciation (11-1) 686 578
Supplementary pension scheme cost 1758 1 587
ﬁ Other expenses 731 937 393 555
| | 948 077 503 787
! 6. ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSES
Note 2021 2020
B No. LE (600) LE (600
! Salaries & Wapges 827 765 904 991
Spare parts and maintenance expsnses 8415 11402
’.:. Fixed assets depreciation (11-1) 40 832 44 085
J Supplementary pension scheme cost 5058 4549
} Other expenses 521899 552 334
L] 1403979 1517 361
-14 -
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Ezz Steel Company

Transilation from Arabic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Note
No.
Donations
Impairment of assets (19)
Formed provisions during the year 27)

Other expenses

8. FINANCE INCOME AND COST

Finance and interest incems
Interest & finance cost *
Foreign currency exchange differences (losses) gains

Net fimapce costs

9, BASIC AND DILUTED PROFIT (LOSSES) PER SHARE FOR THE YEAR

Owners of the company shﬁre :
Net Profit /loss for the year (LE 000)*

Weighted average number of outstanding shares during the
year (share)**

Basic and dituted loss per share for the year
(LE / share)*

2021 2020
LE {000) LE (000)
524010 76 190
52 820 2524
340 990 130 625
259 418 18 601
1177238 227 940
2021 2020
LE (000) LE (000
136 838 94 847
(3 391 597) (3 899 231)
105 425 (135 282)
(3 149 334) (3 939 666)
2021 2020
3521 623 (3 119 045)
532 891 832 533802 313
- 6 .61 (5.84)

* There’s discount for 10 373 195 shares were eliminated:for calculating the weighted average number of
outstanding shares during the Year Ended December 31, 2021 which represent treasury stocks
(comparing to 9 462 714 shares on December 31, 2020) {Note no. 23).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The employees of the company and some of its subsidiaries are granted an end of service benefits
through insurance and provident fund for the employees of Al Ezz Industrial Group registered on
22/2/2000, that according to conditions and determinants included in the fund regulation. The company's
contribution to the fund is represented in defined contribution where the company pays all the saving and
insurance subscriptions according to the conditions and the percentage mentioned in the fund regulations
and this is based on the subscription fees that is determined using the monthly basic salary at 1/1/2000 in

addition to the annual salary incraase.

The value of the of the subscriptions incurred by the parent company and some of its subsidiary
companies for the vear ended December 31, 2021 amounted to L.E 31 052 K has been included in
salaries and wages in the statement of income (against L.E 30 829 K for year 2020).
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
'7 Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

112 Leased fixed assets:
Fized assets include leased assets as of December 31, 2021 as follows:

Aeccumulated
- Cost at depreciation at Net at Net at
- 31/12/2021 31/12/2021 31/12/2621 31/12/2020
J | LE (000 LE (000 LE (600) LE (000)
Land * 70 000 - 70 000 70 000
. Building ** 145 000 20 542 124 458 128 083
215 000 30 5473 194 458 198 083
[ * During 2018, the company signed a contract of sale and lease back for 7 years ending 2025 for a

plot of land owned by the company, Land cost amounted to L.E, 70 Million, as shown in note no,
(29), the company issued an official power of attorney cannot be canceled or revoked in favor of
HD Lease in the signing of the initial and final purchase and sale contracts and the final transfer
of ownership to it or to other in front of the Real Estate Authority for the above-mentioned plot of
land.

** During 2016, the company concluded a finance lease contracts for two floors in Nile Plaza
building for 8 years ending 2024 as shown in note no. (29).

11.3 The following is the movement during the year for modification surplus of fixed assets which is
resulting from the adoption of the special accounting treatment related to dealing with the effects
of floating foreign currency exchanges rates which is included in Annex (A) of the Modified
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (13) “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™

_ LE (000)
Modification surplus of fixed assets at floating foreign exchange rate date 4013 795
(November 3, 2016) :
Income tax (903 104)
MNet madiﬁcation surplus of fixed assets after income tax _ 3110 691
Recognized portion till December 31, 2020 o (869 811)
Net modification surplus of fixed assets at December 31, 2020 2 240 880
Recognized portion during the year Ended December 31, 2021 (171 184)
Net modification surplus of fixed assets at December 31, 2021 2 069 696
Attributable to: _
Owners of the holding Company 1335620
Non-controlling interest 734 076
2069696
12. PROJECTS UNBDER CONSTRUCTION
31122021 31/12/2620
LE (006) LE (66®)
Constructions expansion 4820 19 572
Machinery under installation 1565720 114 186
Advance payments for purchase of fixed assets 14772 78 502
1585312 212 669
= 17-
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company

Notes to the consolidated financial statemenis for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

13. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
LE (000) LE (000
13-1 Investments in subsidiaries :
(Not included in the Consolidated Financial Statements }
- Al Ezz for medical industries
(30% owned by Bzz Steel company and 30% by Al Ezz El Dekheila 1500 600
for Steel — Egypt (EZDK)
The subsidiary company was established on August 11, 2020, 25% of
the capital was paid, the company did not practice any activities yet to
date, and the company hasn’t prepared any financial statements yet.
13-2 Invesimernits in associates
- Egyptian German Co, for Flat Steel Marketing (Franco) (L.L.C) 90 90
{(under liquidation)
(50% owned by Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria)
- Al Ezz Fl Dekheila for Steel — Egypt (EZDK) 25 25
(50% owned by Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria)
- EZDK Steel UK LTD — (Note no. 38-1) ] |
(50% owned by Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria)
13-3 Investments available-for-sale
- Arab Company for Special Steel (SAE} 4263 17726
(1% owned by Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria).
- The Egyptian Company for Cleaning and Security Services 80 80
(30.80% owned by Al Ezz Steel Company)
- Atlantic Pacific Transport Ltd. 4016 4016
(5% owned by Iron for Industrial, Trading and Constructing Steel
Company {Contra Steel)).
9975 22 538
Less: : _
- Impairment loss in Arab Company for Special Steel 4263 17726
- Impairment loss in EZDK Steel UK LTD i 1
- Impairment loss in Egyptian German Co. for Flat Steel Marketing 90 00
(Franco) L.L.C (under liquidation)
Impairment loss in long term investments (Note no.19) 4 354 17 817
5621 4721
14, LONG TERM LENDING TG OTHERS
Long term lending is represented in the following:
Note  31/12/2021 31/12/2020
No. LIE (60G) LE (600}
Employecs’ advance payments 77 172 75 623
Employees’ loans present value 28 469 31 241
105 641 106 864
Less:
Employees’ loans and advances due within the year (18) (48 538) (52 143)
Long term employees’ loans and advances 57 103 54721
Tess:
Differences resulted from change in the fair value of long- (9 471) (9 341)
term employeses’ loans
47 632 45 380
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’] Transiation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Company
o Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial yeor Ended December 31, 2021 {Continued)
15. OTHER ASSETS
The amount is represented in the paid-up amount by Al Fzz Flat Steel Company (EFS) —
‘l subsidiary company — to Industrial Development Authority for the approval of the steel rebar production
license:
LE (000)
Cost at January 1, 2021 35 858
1 (Less):
: Amortization for the year 5123
Net at December 31, 2021 30 735
J 16. INVENTORY
33/12/2021 31/12/2020
" LE (000} LE (089)
§ Raw materials and supplies 4524 310 2324738
Work in process 704 873 319757
Finished products 2221 314 1741922
] Spare parts and supplies 1 835 844 1980 166
Goods in transit 160 923 281 397
Letters of credit 71 690 28 776
9518 954 6 676 756
17. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
Note 31/12/2021 31/12/20620
’ No. LE (060) LE ({00)
Trade receivables , 2771711 1682 047
E Trade receivables — Related parties (32-1) 9 0438 . 8731
Notes receivable 2 055 788 1215125
4 836 547 2 905 903
Less:
l Tmpairment loss on trade receivables (19) (40 559) (30:121)
) 4 795 988" 2 875 782
18. DERTORS AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES
' Note 31/12/2021 31/12/2620
7 No. LE (600) LE (008)
Deposits with others 1272 913 1231024
Tax Authority (18-1) 1892355 1224017
Tax Authority — usuftuct (18-2) 127 417 127 477
ﬁ Tax Authority — VAT 1227071 862 167
Customs Authority 182 728 22 503
Accrued revenues 761 587
E Prepaid expenses 68 648 69 041
Alexandria Port Authority 19 570 19 570
Employees” loans and advance payments due within a year {14) 48 538 52 143
ﬂ Letters of credit cash margin 7212 4491
' Letters of guarantee cash margin (33-1) 1315 135
- Due from related parties (32-2) - 34 849 20 531
3 Advance payment under the account of employees’ dividends 53 522 35 816
- The Cairo Economic Court (18-3) 35 060 35 060
. Other debit balances (18-4} 970 643 750 651
; 5942 662 4 455 213
kol Less:
Impairment loss on debtors and other debit halances (19} (92 891) (50 509)
5849 771 4 464 704
- -19-




] Translation fFom Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

L

18-1 The Tax Authority balances include an amount of LE 254.2 Million represents an advance payment
under the account of scheduling the tax claims of Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria —
a subsidiary with respect to the flat steel projects penalties and fines for years 2000/2004 according
to what is mentioned in detail in Note no. {35-3-1) in addition to an amount of LE 215 Million which
represents the advance payment under the account of corporate tax inspection differences of Al Ezz
- El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria for years 2005/2008. and amount of LE 25 Million paid under the
income tax account from 2014 to 2017, '
18-2 Tax Authority — usufiuct balances represent the value of advance payments of additional sales tax
) for the usufruct for Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria — company on the mining ores dock
! and storing area in El Dekheila Port which is amounted to LE 127.5 Million — (Note no. 38-2).

~ 18-3 The Cairo Economic Court balance represents the amount due to the company in the previously
paid amounts after deducting the penalties that judged in the misdemeanour No, 368 of the year
2013 related to the monopoly of Steel Bars product against some officials of the group companies
that the Court of Cassation issued on November 25, 2014 which is amounted to LE 20.5 Millien and
the legal procedures are in process to redeem this amount from. the court.

18-4 The other debit balances item includes an amount of LE 49.5 Million represents 15% of the license
related to the second production line which Ezz Rolling Mills Company- a subsidiary company-
paid on February 2012,
19, IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON ASSETS

S

Formed disposals
during the during the
Note 1/1/2021 year year 31/12/2921
Impairment foss on: No. LE (600) LE (000) LE (000) LE (G0D)
Long term investments (13) 17 817 - (13 463) 4 354
Trade and notes receivable (17 30 121 10 438 - 40 559
Debtors and other debit balances (18) 50 509 42 382 - 92 891
Advance payments for suppliers 2332 - - 2332
100 779 52 820 (13 463) 140 136
20, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
33/12/2021 31/12/2020
LE (000} LE (000}
Banks - time deposits : 243 960 232 370
Banks — current accounts 3 069 795 1 867 530
Cheques under collection 115 492 59 091
Cash on hand 49 90§ 64 095
3479 155 2223 486
Less:
Banks ~ overdraft (270 398) (155 949)
Restricted time deposits and current accounts within the credit
conditions grantedpby the bank for the Group companies (132 059) (140 273) _
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 3076 698 1926 864
21, CAPITAL
21.1 Awthorized capital
o The company's authorized capital is LE 8 Billion.
¥ 21.7 The issued and paid in capitz]
The issued and paid capital after the increase is LE 2 716 325 K (Two Billion, Seven Hundred and
= Sixteen Million, Three Hundred and Twenty-Five Thousand FEgyptian Pound) distributed over

543 265 027 share with a par value of LE 5 per share paid in full. The issued and paid in capital after the
increase was registered in the Commezcial Register with No. 1176 Menouf city on October 30, 2008.
The shareholders and the percentages of their contribution at the date of the financial position are as
follows:

- 20-




Transiation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
Shareholder Number of Par Value Contribution Contribution
— Shares LE % %
- Al BEzz Group holding for industry i ) 38.403
and investment (Ezz industries) * i '
- Engineer/Ahmed Abd El Aziz Ezz* 356 933 139 1 784 665 695 65.701 27.298
- Al Ezz for Rolling mills 9462714 47313 570 1742 1742
(subsidiary company)
- Others 176 869 174 884 345 870 32.557 32,557
543 265 027 2716325135 100 100

*  Some subsidiaries of “Al Ezz Group Holding company for Industry & Investment “Ezz Industries” have

soid their shares in Ezz steel company on April 21 2020, which represent a percentage of contribution of
27.29% for Fng/ Ahmed Abdelaziz Ezz, consequently the percentage of the mentioned company
contribution (direct and indirect) in Ezz steel company after this transaction is 38.403% on December 31
2020, rather than 65.25% until April 2020,

*  Aspart of the restruéturing Al-Ezz Holding Co. for Industrial and Investment ( Al- Ezz Holding Group ) on

7/6/2021 sold its shares, which represented a contribution rate of 38.403% to Eng/ Ahmed Ezz.
22. RESERVES

31/12/2021 31/12/2020
LE (600) LE (000)
Legal reserve® 1358 163 1358163
Other reserves (Additional paid in capital) ** 2 620 756 2620756
;Flﬁjesii&ifafg??céz gﬁi}fltmg from the acquisition of additional percentage in (3 796 829) (3796 829)
182 650 182 096

*  Legal reserve: 5% of net profit should be appropriated to form legal reserve; the Company will stop
appropriation once the legal reserve balance reaches 50% of the Company’s issued capital; in case the
reserve balance becomes less than stated percentage, the appropriation will continue and The legal
reserve may be used for the benefit of the Company based on a proposal by the Board of Directors after

-approval by the General Assembly.

#*  Other reserves: Additional paid in capital resulted from capital increase for the acquisition of Al Ezz Bl
Dekheila for Steel shares, and bonds converted to shares.

23. TREASURY STOCKS

Treasury stocks represent the number of & 462 714 shares of Bzz Steel Company owned by Al Ezz
Rolling Mills Company (ERM) - (subsidiary company) which amounting to LE 71 921 X, and they are
classified as treasury stocks for the consolidation purposes.

On Janmary 5, 2021 the parent company’s Board of Directors decided to purchase treasury shares with a
percent of 1% of the paid-up capital of the company and a maximum of one Million- shares, the
Managing Director was delegated to set prices and the period for purchasing treasury shares within the
company’s available sources of financing and liquidity, the Financial Regulatory Authority approved this
transaction. The total number of shares purchased is 910 481 Shares with an amount of L.E 10 381 K.

So, the total number of treasury shares becomes 10 373 195 shares with a total cost of LE 82,302 K.
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{\_ Translation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Comparny

NT Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 {Continued)
24. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABILE
31/12/2021 31/12/2020
Due within Long term Total Total
one year Note No. (36}

. LE (008 LE (900 LE (600 LE (000
Trade payables 3743 (439 - 3743 039 3719 194
Notes payable 1 683 867 2 075 696 3759 563 5 238 598
_ 5 426 206 2 G75 696 7 502 602 8 957 791
r Deferred interest (125 293) (264 013) (389 308) (840 163)
- 5301 61} 1811 683 7113 294 8117 629

i“’ As of December 31, 2021, trade and notes payable include an amount of installments due to the

Blectricity and natural gas supplying Companies, the company and its subsidiaries made an agreement
i with the mentioned companies to reschedule the payment of dues which amounted to L.E 3339.5
[ Million to be paid on maximum of 48 monthly installment beginning from the date of the agreement, in
s addition to an annual interest stated on the rescheduling agreement mentioned above.

23.

Mote 31/12/202% 31/12/2020
No, LE (300} LE (660)
Accrued interest 259 (026 631 889
Accrued expenses 1720 718 1239703
Tax Authority 223 923 417 820
Performance guarantee retention 90 217 58 621
Sales tax instalments 96 483 - 96 483
Dividends payable 1 609 1 606
Due to related parties (32-3) 71 324 109 183
Deferred revenue for grants (30-3) 750 817
Other credit balances . 222 242 182 072
2 686 292 2738 194

26, LIARILITY OF THE SUPPLEMENTARY PENSION SCHEME

As of the first of January 2013, according to decision of the Board of Directors of Al Ezz ] Dekheila for
Steel - Alexandria dated December 27, 2012, the Company resolved to grant the employees of the
company the benefit of supplementary pension scheme as well as Contra Steel company, for the benefit
of any case of retirement at the age of sixty, death or occupational disability of any employee as the
company grants all the employees a fixed monthly pension at the age of sixty for ten years and the
pension amount is determined based on the year of disbursement and the subscription is collected from
the employees of the company based on their age categories while the company bears the remaining cost.
The cost of the supplementary pension scheme during the year ended December 31, 2021 amounted to
L.E 31.7 Million charged to the consolidated financial statement according to the actuary’s report issued
annually,




} Translation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Comparny '
. Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)
1 Note 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
No.  LE(0060) LE (000)
] Balanee at the beginning of Janvary 217 500 196 732
Add:
Present service cost 2825 2 841
Return cost 28 866 25 737
H Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of income 31 691 28 578
249 191 725 310
» Actuarial (profits) losses from the defined benefits pension scheme 4071 (3 907)
| Employees paid subscriptions during the year 8 486 7982
261 754 229 385
" Lgns;:g’;.
B Paid pensions during the year (15 411) (11 885)
Total liabikities of supplementary pension scheme 246 343 217 500
& Distributed as follows:
i Included in current liabilities 25101 20 771
Included in long-term liabilities (30) 221 242 196 729
246 343 217 500
The main actuarial assunptions used by the company according to the study prepared by the actuary are

represented as follows: -

Average assumptions to determine the liabilities of the benefits  31/12/2021  31/12/2020
A- Average discount rate 14.7 % 14.6 %
B- Average inflation rate 6.3 % 4.5 %
Average assumptions to determine the net cost of the benefits 31/12/2021  31/12/2020
A- Average discount rate 14.6 % 14 %
B- Average inflation rate 4.5 % 3.63 %
27. PROVISIONS
7 d duri Used
1/1/2021 ormed GUIing - quring the  31/12/2021
e year yeat

LE (000} LE (000} LE (0600) LE (000)

Tax and claims provision 352 108 340 990 (15 276) 677 822

Employees Lawsuits provision 19535 - - 1 955

354 063 340 990 (15 276) 679 777

28. LOANS
Short term Long term Total
portion portion
LE (000) LE (00¢ LE (008

Loans - local currency 939 328 5724 874 6 664 202
Loans - foreign currency 1226 579 1741 359 2967 938
Banks - credit facilities 19 966 305 4 966 363 24 932 668
Ralance as of December 31, 2021 22 132 212 12 432 596 34 564 808
Balance as of December 31, 2029 22 812 438 11 634 621 34 447 0359
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Translation firom Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 202 [ (Continued)

Ezz Stcel Company (Holding company)

On January 18, 2015, the company signed an agreement with the National Bank of Egypt and the Arab
African Tnternational Bank (security agent) to grant the company a joint long term loan amounted to
LE 1.7 Billion due within 7 years from the date of signing the contract, the purpose of the loan is to
restructure the banks credit facilities granted to the company through paying the current liabilities due to
the banks, according to the agreement the company will issue an official irrevocable power of attorney
authorizing the security agent for itself and on behalf of the barks to conclude and register a first degree
fond de commerce mortgage on the company including Sadat factory within six months from the first
withdrawal date also the borrower should keep his share in the subsidiaries without any amendments, as
will keeping some financial ratios and indicators that is specified in the loan agreement during the year
of the agreement. It will be paid on 26 non equal quarterly instalment, the first instalment accrued on
August 2015 starting from the ending of first six months of the first withdrawal on February 5, 2015 with
an average return of 3.5% above Corridor published from the Central Bank of Egypt paid every three
months.

The commission of arrangement and finance cover guarantee (transaction cost of the loan) is 7.5 per
thousand amounting LE 12.75 Million has been paid when the company got the loan, and the balance
appears after deducting the amortization of the period from the date of obtaining the loan till December
31, 2021 deducted from the loan balance.

The instalments paid until December 31, 2021 amounted to LE 988 Million (against LE 895 Million
December 31, 2020).

The company has bencfited from the central bank of Egypt initiative related to postponing the credit
maturities for six maonths, ending in September 15, 2020 and no additional fines or fees applied on
postponing the payment based on the instructions of the Central Bank of Egypt on March 15, 2020 and
it’s appendixes, related to the precautious procedures against the effect of corona virus pandemic.

During the year 2020 and after the end of the period of postponing payment of the intercst according to
the Central Bank initiative, the banks which granted the loans have modified the instalments with an
amount of L.E 152 479 K according to an appendix of the loan, the amount represents the accrued
interest on the loan balance for the period from 3/11/2019 to 31/12/2020" to pay the loan plus interest in
16 quarterly instalments starting from March 31, 2021 to December 31, 2024., the interest rate was
modified to 1.5% above the Corridor rate for the first year and 2% above the Corridor rate starts from
second year from the date of activating the Joan appendix.

Al Fzz El Dekheila for Steel — Alexandria (Subsidiary)

The Company obtained a revolving medium-term credit facility from National Bank of Egypt amounted
LE 800 Million for 3 years ending in October 17, 2021 and the balance as of December 31, 2021 is
LE 796.59 Million.

The Company obtained a revolving medium-term credit facility from Qatar National Bank — Al Ahly
amounted to LE 1.5 Billion or its equivalent in foreign currencies. Its balance amounted to LE 1432.15
Million as at December 31, 2021 whose due date is January 2022.

The Company has made an agreement with the Export Development Bank of Egypt to acquire a
revolving medium-term credit facility, whose due date is April 2022, amounted to LE 600 Million or its
equivalent in foreign currency. Its balance amounted to LE 150.88 Million as at December 31, 2021 and
a portion of foreign currency amounted to LE 160.74 Million equivalent to USD 10.18Million as of
December 31 2021.

The Company obtained from the Arab African International Bank (AAIB) a revolving medium-term
credit facility whose due date is July 2023 with a total amount of USD 158 Million or its equivalent in
local currency. lis balance amounted to LE 893.12 Million as of December 31, 2021 and a part in foreign
cuirency amounted to L.E 544.1 Million equivalent to USD 34.48 Million as of December 31, 202].

The Company obtained from a revolving medium term credit facility from Bank Misr and National Bank
of Egypt to finance the working capital of Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company and Al Ezz Flat Steel
Company (subsidiaries companies), that Bank Misr is the security agent and National Bank of Egypt as
the revenue calculation bank (Indirect contributor through Alahly Capital company for investments)
whose due date is 13/2/2022 renewable apnually, its balance amouited to L.E 2983.7 Million as of
December 31, 2021,
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Transiation firom Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 {Continued)

The company obtained a medium-term loan from Qatar National Bank — Al Ahly for the purpose of
restructuring part of the outstanding debt by USD 69.5 Million. The loan is to be paid in 26 quarter
anmual instalment ending at Aug 31, 2025. The balance as of December 31, 2021 is amounted to USD
40.92 Million equivalent to LE 645.64 Million

The company obtained a medium — term loan from Arab African International bank (as a part of the
company’s financial restructure plan) with an amount of USD 61.5 Million and the loan is to be paid in
twenty-eight quarter annual instalment ending at November 28, 2025. The balance as of December 31,
2021 amounted to USD 35.2 Million equivalent to LE 555.41 Million.

The company obtained a medium-term loan from bank of Alexandria for the purpose of restructuring
part of the outstanding debt by USD 50 Million. The loan is to be paid in 26 quarter annual instalment
ending at January 15, 2026. The halance as of December 31, 2021 is amounted to USD 33.38 Million
equivalent to LE 526.64 Million.

The company obtained a medium-term lozn from HSBC to finance the development and construction of
the second direct reduction plant at an amount of EURO- 12.5 Million and LE 80 Miltion. the loan is to
be paid in 12 Semi-annual instalments ending on January 15, 2026, the balance as of December 31, 2021
is amounted to LE 38.36 Million and a portion of foreign currency amounted to USD 9.08 Million
equivalent to LE 143.27 Million.

The company obtained a medium-term loan from NBK for the purpose of restructuring part of the
outstanding debt by USD 20 Million. The loan is to be paid in 26 quarter annual instalment ending at
Angust 28, 2026, The balance as of December 31, 2021 is amounted to USD 14.63 Million equivalent to
LE 230.84 Million.

Al Ezz Flat Steel (Subsidiary)

The Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) which replaced the National Westminster Bank acts as the infer-
creditor agent for Al Ezz Flat Steel Company - a subsidiary - as well as an agent for the international
syndicated loans in which nine banks participated. According {o the loans agreements, the National Bank
of Egypt acts as the Onshore Security Agent, and the Royal Bank of Scotland acts as the Offshore.
Security Agent, The most significant guarantees provided are represented in real-estate mortgage and
commercial pledge on the land, the tangible and intangible assets of the company, a possessory pledge
on the inventory and assignment of the company’s rights stated in the contracts of construction, supply,
technical support agreements and insurance policies in favour of the banks.

The interests on the National Bank of Egypt (NBE)} and SACE guéranteed loans is calculated in USD
based on a variable interest rate related to LIBOR. The interests on Banque Misr loan is calculated in
Egyptian pound based on Lending and discount rate declared by the central bank of Egypt.

The balance of loan installments due in the course of on year on loan agreements is EGP 730 Million
consisting of instalments due from the stoppage date to December 31, 2021

The Banks-credit facilities amounting to L.E. 1.48 Billion on 31/12/2021 is represented in the amount
used from the facilities granted by the local banks in the Bgyptian pound against several guarantecs, the
most significant of which is a pledge on the inventory, and joint guarantee from Al-Ezz El-Dekheila
Steel Alexandria, assignment of all export proceeds to the banks and depositing all local sales revenues
at banks, as well as concluding insurance policy covering theft and fire of inventory in favour of the
banks, as well keeping some financial ratios and indicators, during the facility period based on an
interest rate related to Corridor rate declared by the Central Bank of Egypt in addition to a commission
on the highest debit balance.

During year 2020, the above-mentioned credit facilities were rescheduled to be paid in 24 unequal
quarterly installments according to specific percentages of the facility's balance starting from 31/3/2021
and ending on 31/12/2026.
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

28.4 Al Ezz Rolling Mills (Subsidiary)

—  An approval has been made on December 10, 2020 to restracture debts by the banks participating in the
" long-term loan granted to the company for the purpose of establishing the reduced iron project, the
restructuring includes the existing debts arising from A, B,and C sections and the calculated returns until
December 31, 2020, with a maximum of 6.5 billion pounds and that the first instalment payment begins
on March 31, 2021, with modifying the interest rate to become 1.5% above the corrider price during the
first year from the daie of activation, then applying 2% above the corridor price from the beginning of
the second year from the activation date until the final maturity date, (instead of 3.5% above the corridor

Lending to both section A, B and 1.75% above corridor lending to section C).

_  The loan restructuring were activated on June 16, 2021.

~  According to the commercial register of the company, there is a commercial pledge for the guarantee
agent its self and on behalf on the borrowing banks on all the material and abstract, equipment, goodwill,
and the industrial copyrights of the company.

29, Finance lease

Deferred Interest Present value of lease
Future lease payments payments
31/12/2021 31122020 31/12/2021 31122020 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
LE (009) LE (009) LE (600) LE (080) LE (000) LE (609)

Due within one 115 347 115 347 42 026 50 781 73 321 64 566
Add . .

Long term 357 095 473 904 65 884 107 910 291 211 365 994
Total 472 442 589 251 107 910 158 691 364 532 430 560

— The company signed finance lease contracts (N 0.4537 & 4538) with Corplease (Leasing Company) as at
June 27, 2016 to lease 2 floors in Nile Plaza Building for Eight years ending June 2024, the contracts
provide the right to the campany to owi those assets at a predetermined value at the end of the confract
year. On July 18, 2017, the company signed appendixes to these contracts to finance fixtures and finishes
for one of the leased floors and adding it to the leased asset and amending the lease contract, for Eight
years ending July 2025. On September 20, 2018, the company signed an appendix to these contracts to
increase the finance related to the leased asset in a form of revaluation of that asset and modify the
capital lease contracts, the repayment of the extra finance will be on 32 quarterly equally instalment
starts from December 20, 2018 till September 20, 2026, The cost of acquiring these two floors has been
included in the buildings item in the fixed assets ol the company in accordance with the Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. (49} Leasing contracts.

. On November 13, 2016, the company signed a finance lease contract (Contract n0.4675) with Corplease
(Leasing Company) to finance the fixtures and finishes for the floors that have been leased in Nile Plaza
building for the period of Eight years ending November 2024.

— During December 2018, the company signed contracts of sale and lease back (Contract no.1) with HD
company For Capital Lease for a piece of land of the lands owned by the company, and as per the
contracts with the mentioned company, the lease is for 7 years ending December 25, 2025, and the
contract gives the company the right to own the mentioned land at the end of the contract’s period at
predetermined amount in the contract. It has been determined that the above-mentioned contracts are not
representing the sale of the plot of land. Accordingly, the plot of land has been re-recognized in the fixed
assets and recognized a financial Hability equal to the proceeds of transfer, that is in accordance with
Egyptian accounting standard {49) Lease Coniracts.

— During October 2020, an appendix has been concluded for the finance lease contracts mentioned above
and that was based on the decrees taken by the Central Bank of Egypt as of March 16, 2020 as some
installments were postponed for 6 months in addition to decreasing interest rates, where quartesly post- '
paid checks has been issued till March 2027 after recalculating deferred interests based on the new
interest rates.
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes io the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

30. LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Note  31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No. LE (600) LE (000)
Notes payable (24-1) 20 75 696 3531106
Liability of the supplementary pension scheme (26) 221242 196 729
Iending from others (30-1) 583230 584 342
Fixed asset purchase creditors (30-2) 820 440 -
Deferred revenue for grants {30-3) - 750

3700 608 4312 927

Unamortized portion of present value of the notes payable (264 013) (595 303)
Present value for the long-term liabifities 3 436 595 - 3717634

30.1 Al Ezz Flat Steel Company — (subsidiary company) borrowed USD 37 Million equivalent to
LE 582 Million from Daniele Company based on a contract dated September 27, 2013 and the loan
was used in full on October 1, 2013 to pay part of the loan due to the National Bank of Egypt
(NBE), Banque Misr and the foreign banks virtue of the guarantee of SACE, thereof the interests of
the loan are calculated based on variable interest rate related to LIBOR.

30.2 Fixed asset purchase creditors represented in the due to Danilli, on 27/1/2021 the company agreed with
the mentioned supplier to reschedule the payment of the dues and the added interest according to the
following:

The liability due to the supplier according to the purchase invoices in addition to the calculated interest
on it starting from 1/11/2020 is paid in quarterly instaliments ends in 2026.

The settlement agreement includes that the supplier will waive the right to due interest which calculated
on the liabitity of supplying machinery and equipment during the prior years for the period from the
invoice due date until 31/10/2020, this is in case of the company paying all the quarterly installments
hased on. the seitlement agreement, :
The company and Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel- Alexandria signed joint guarantees in favor of the
above-mentioned supplier to guarantee that the mentioned subsidiary companies would pay its dues .
stated in the settlement agreement,

According to the setiloment agreement, the part due to be paid during the year 2022 will be equivalént to the
amount of LE 154 Milion. 7 '

30.3 Deferred revenues represent the amount of financial assistance granted by “Exon Mobil” to the
renovation of the car-catering and service station owned by Contra Steel (Subsidiary company)} with an
amount of LE 3 820 K, deferred revenues due within one year is amounted to LE 750 K (Note no. 25).

31, DEFERRED TAX
311 Recognized deferred tax assets and lizbilities

31/12/2621 31/12/2020
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
LE (000) LE (000} LE (600) LIE (000}
Fixed asscts - (3 536 054) - (3601 513)
Provisions and assets impairment 107 722 - 47472 -

- Finance lease liabilities 20 487 - 25455 -
Tax losses 1095 701 - 2013 633 -
Losses from foreign currency translation 34143 - 34 143 -
Unpaid dividends in subsidiary companies - (66 426) - -
Gains from foreign currency translation - i (41 006) - (60 437)

1258 053 (3 643 486) 2120 783 {3 661 950)
Net deferred tax (liability) (2 385 433) (1 541 247)
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H Translation from Arabic
Ezz Steel Company
: Notes o the consolidated fimancial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)
D 31.2 Recognized deferred {ax charged to the consclidated statement of income:
31/12/2021 31/12/2028
LE (600) LE (609}
Net deferred tax (2 385 433) (1 541 247)
Less/ (Add}):
Translation differences - 21 267
] Previously charged deferred tax (1 541 247) (1 876 472)
Deferred tax (844 186) 313 958
H'l 31.3 Unrecognized deferred tax assets
L 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
\ LE (003} LE (600
F Impairment loss on Receivables and debtors 10 850 8 408
Provisions 101 084 65 619
Tax losses 1017 681 660 068
i 1128 615 734 185
Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the above items due to uncertainty of the
. utilization of their benefits in the foreseeable future.
32. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
il The company conducts commercial transactions with related parties. The following is the most important

of these transactions and related balances:

Nature of
Trangaction
32.1 Items included in trade and notes receivable
. Al Ezz for Trading and Distributing Building
Materials (Affiliated company)

32.2 Items included in debtors and other debit balances
_ Gulf of Suez Development Company

(Affiliated company)
- Al Ezz for Ceramics and Porcelain (GEMMA) Rent
(affiliated company)
- Sales
Purchases

- Al Ezz for medical industries (subsidiary)

32.3 Items inciuded in creditors and other credit balances
_ Al Ezz Group Holding Company for Industry &
Investment (Sharcholder)
. Al Bzz for Trading and Distribufing Building
Materials (Affiliated company)

8-

Transaction  Balance as of Balance as of -
Volume 31/12/2021 31/12/2020
" during the  Debit/{credit) Debit/(credit)
year
LE (000) LE (0600) LE (000)
2 490 0 048 8731
2 048 g 731
_ 91 49
973 24 175 20 482
_ T
99
10 383 -
34 849 20 531
(71 294) (109 164)
(30) (19)
(71324) __ (109 183)
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
33.]1 Contingent liabilities are represented in the amount of the letters of guarantee which are not covered that

were issued by the Company’s banks and subsidiaries in favour of others and the uncovered letters of
_} credit, detailed as follows:
- 31/12/2821 31/12/2020
Equivalent Equivalent
*} Letters of guarantfee fﬁm fﬁm
Egyptian Pound 7 825 18253
US Dollar 17 347 17380
] Letters of credit
US Dollar 2621 632 2268 841
Euro 69 762 425 814
”! The letters of guarantee fully covered issued by the banks of the company and its subsidiaries in favour

P
[,

of others on December 31, 2021 amounted to LE 1 215 K (against LE 135 K as of December 31, 2020
fully covered) (Note no.18).

33.2 The settlement agresment with one of the foreign suppliers (Note 1n0.30-2) includes the supplier claims
Al Ezz Flat Steel (subsidiary company) for interest that will be calculated in agreement with the
company on the liability of supplying spare parts during previous years amounted to 15 483 K Euro
which is stated in the suppliers balance as of 30/12/2021 from the invoice due date until 31/10/2020, this
is in case of the company does not pay all the liabilities stated in the settlement agreement in the due
dates.

34, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The capital Commitments of E]l Fzz El Dekhaila as of December 31, 2021 amounted to LE 33 Million,
(whereas the amount as of December 31, 2020 is LE 88 Million).

35 TAX POSITION
35.1 Ezz Steel Company

35.1.1 Corporate tax
- The Company enjoyed tax exemption according to article No. (24) from Law No. (59} for 1979
related to development of the new urban communities, the Comparny was granted a tax exemption
for a period of ten years which started on January 1, 1997 and ended on December 31, 2006.
. The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until December 31, 2017 and there are no
outstanding dues or tax disputes.
The company submitted tax returns for the years 2018:2020 under Law No. 91 of 2005 on the due
legal dates, currently the tax inspection is being prepared for those years.

35.1.2 Sales tax and VAT
. The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until year 2015 and the company paid the tax
differences in fuil. :

=32

1

- The tax inspection was done for years 2016/2020 and differences were settled by deducting from
a the company’s credit balance in the VAT retura,
; . Tax returns are submitted according to Value Added Tax law on the due legal dates.
35.1.3 Salary tax
- The tax inspection was done till 2018 and there are no outstanding due.
3 . The tax inspection was done for year 2019 and the setflement and payment in progress.
35.1.4 Stamp tax
J - The tax inspection was done till 2018 and there are no outstanding due,
i 35.1.5

Property tax
- The tax assessment issued and paid up to 31/12/2020.

35.2 Al Ezz Rolling Mills Company

35.2.1 Corporate tax
- The Company established its factory in the 10th of Ramadan City and according to the article
No. (24} of Law No. 59 for 1979 relating to the development of new urban communities, the
Company is tax exempted until December 31, 1999,

.
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Translation from drabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

- The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books untii 2017 and there are no any due amounts on
the company, the tax inspection has resulted in approved tax losses amounting to LE 73 862 K in
2016 and LE 1 321 347 K in 2017

- The tax return was submitted on its legal date for years 2018 till 2020 according to the income tax
law No. 91 for 2005 and its amendments,

35.2.2 Sales tax and VAT

. The Tax Authority inspected the Company s books until 2018 and the taxes due were paid.
. The monthly tax returns are summited on their legal due dates.

352.3 Salarytax

- The Company’s books have been inspected umtil year 2015 and the taxes due were paid and there
are no outstanding dues on the company.

- The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books for year 2016 till 2018 and disputes are being
resolved by the Internal Committee.

- The company deducts and subimits its tax for year 2019 and 2020.

3524 Stamptax

- The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until year 2018 and all disputes were settled and
there are no outstanding dues. '
- The tax inspection hasn’t been requested for year 2019 and 2020 yet.

35.2.5 Property tax

- The tax assessment issued and paid up to 31/12/2020.

35.3 Al Ezz Bl Delcheilza for Steel — Alexandria Company

3531

Corporate Tax

The Company’s books have been inspected until year 2017 and there are no outstanding dues on the
company.

The tax inspection for years 2018 and 2020 are in progress.

The sitnaiion of tax disputes:

The period 2000-2004: for the exemption of flat steel project amounted to LE 254 Million, the dispute is
currently submitted to committee of tax dispute seftlement.

The period 2005-2006: for the exemption of flat steel project (5™ year) amounted to LE 215 Million, the
dispute is currently submitted to administrative court.

Salary Tax
The tax inspection for the years until 2016 were done and there are no outstanding,
Tax inspection for the years 2017 tili 2020 arc in progress.

Sales Tax and VAT

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until year 2015 and all disputes were scitled and
there are no outstanding dues.

Years from 2016/2020 were examined, the company notified with form 15 and the tax due was fully

“paid.

The situation of tax disputes:

2008-2012: The additional tax on the accrual of the sales tax retroactively on iron oxide ore as the tax is
refundable in the amount of LE 108 million, and the judgment was issued in favour of the company
rejecting the sub-lawsuit filed by the Minisiry of Finance and the debt department of the major financiers
center canceled the claim.

The inspection were finished and the company notified with form 15 the tax was fully paid.

Stamp Tax

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until year 2016 and all disputes were seftled and
there are no cutstanding dues.
Tax inspection is not performed yet for the years 2017 to 2020.
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Fzz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

Property tax

The decision of the commitice of tax dispute scttlement approved by the Minister of Finance was issued
to reduce the annual real estate tax from LE 17 million to LE 10.7 million, and a settlement was made
with the real estate taxes Agami, and the tax paid until December 31, 2021.

Al Ezz Flat Steel Company

Corporate tax

In the light of issuing Law No. 114 of 2008 on May 5, 2008, the private free zones license was being
cancelled and the company become subject to corporate tax from that date.

The Tax Autherity inspected the Company’s book from the commencement of activity until 2018 and
resulted in tax losses.

Salary Tax

The tax inspection was made and there are no tax claims on the company since the beginning of the
business till 2016.

The tax inspection for years from 2017 to 2019 were done and dispute currently resolved in the internal
committee.

Sales tax and VAT

The Tax Authority inspected the Company’s books until 31/12/2018, tax assessment issued and paid.up
at legal date and there are no dues. ‘

The company submits the monthly tax refurn on the legal due dates and the inspection for year 2019 and
2020 hasn’t been requested by the tax authority yet.

Stamp {ax

Tax inspection was issued and made until 2020 and there are no claims on the Company.
Real Estate Tax

The tax assessment issued and paid up to 31/12/2020.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instraments are represented in cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
debtors, investments, trade payables, notes payable, creditors, loans and bank credit facilitics, and
finance lease liabilities, book value of these financial instruments does not differ significantly from its
fair value at the financial position date.

Interest rate risk

The interest risk is represented in the interest rates changes on the company’s debts, represented in foans
(before deducting issuance cost) and credit facilities, finance lease liabilities and some rescheduled
suppliers liabilities which amounted to LE 35 620 632 K as of December 31, 2021 (LE 37 585 797 K as
of December 31, 2020). Financing interest and expenses related to these balances amounted to
LE 3 391 597 K during the year (LE 3 899 231 K during the previous year). Restricted time-deposits and
current accounts amounted to LE 514 358 K as of December 31, 2021 (LE 372 643 I as of December
31, 2020), interest income related to these time-deposits and current accounts amounted to LE 136 838 K.
during the current year (LE 94 847 K during the previous year). The company works on getting the best
terms available in the market regarding the credit facilities to mitigate this risk, also the company
reviews the prevailing interest rates in the market periodically which reduces the inferest rate risk.
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

36.3 Credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the financial position date is:

Note 31/32/2021 31/12/2020

Na. LE (000) LE (600)

Long term lending to others (14) 47 632 45 380

Trade and notes receivables (17 4 795 988 2 875782

Debtors and other debit balances (18) 5849 711 4 404 704

U Suppliers - advance payments 802 659 331373
(ash and cash equivalents (20) 3 429 247 2158 991

36.4 Foreign currency risk
The foreign currency risk represents the risk of fluctuation in exchange rates which in turn affects the
Company’s cash inflows and outflows in foreign currency as well as the value of its foreign currencies
monetary assets and liabilities. The Company has foreign currency monetary assets and lizbilities
oquivalent to LE 2 540 800 K and LE 8 143 496 K respectively on December 31, 2021.
The Company’s net exposures in foreign currencies at the financial position date are as follows:

[

) Foreign Curreacy (Deficit)/Surplus

Thousands

i US Dollars (338 443)
Euro (14 333)
Swiss Frank 14
Sterling Pound (118}
Japanese Yen (40 647)
AED 3

As shown in (Note no. 40-1) “Foreign curréncy translation”, the balances of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies shown above were valued using the prevailing exchange
cate of the banks that the Company deals with at the financial position date.

Foreign currencies rates as of the financial position date are as follows:

Closing rates as of:

31/12/2021 31/12/20260
US Dollars 15.7400 15,7700
Euro 17.8791 19.4113
Swiss Frank 17.2285 17.9184
Sterling Pound 21.2742 21.5828
AED 42854 42935

37. THELITIGATION STATUS

37.] Workeérs Lawsuits Regarding Profits

Some of the employee’s terminal employees filed lawsuits to claim of a calculation profits and social
insurance allowances for previous years, in which the rejection and fall were judged except one lawsuit,
The company's management and its legal advisor helieve that the company has adhered fo the correct
Jaw in disbursing the profits of its employees and social allowances in accordance with its legal system
and without prejudice to the rights of any of its employees.

372 Lawsuits before Court Concerning the Trespass on The Company’s land
Some of infringements occurred by some individuals and companied on a part of the company lands ,an
area 17 acres purchased from the stare property protection Authority — Alexandria Governorate within
large area approximately 108 acres which was allocated ‘and received by the company according the
handover report dated 13 December 1998 issued by the governor Alexandria no. 80 of year 1993 . The
company paid the full price of that land in accordance with the agreement between the company and
state property protection authority dated 19 June 2008 , where the infringements were removed on 12
September 2017 , and the company received the land according to the handover report from the state
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

property protection authority and Al Ajami neighborheod after removing the infringements by direct
method , The company was registered the plot of the land where located in the ware houses of row
materials in the southern land of the company .

- The legal procedures have been completed to register the purchased plot land from Alexandria
governorate in Omzaghia , and its area is 109 acres, 11 carat , 23 share after excluding regulatory losses,
according to the final sale contract registered with no. 486 year 2021 dated at 13/9/2021 — public notary
Alexandria , which was previously allocated the company at 18/4/1999.

OTHER TOPICS

EZDK Steel UK limited Company (Subsidiary company)

The company has confracted with a legal liquidator in the United Kingdom to complete the liguidation
procedures, provided that the liquidator’s fees are paid equally with Al-Ezz Group Holding Company for
Industry & Investment.

The legal liquidator ask to pay sterling pound 350 K which is the final payment to settle the liquidation,
the was paid and the final settlement is being extracted and permission to settle the company legally.

Alexandria Port Authority

On June 19, 2011, Alexandria Port Authority issued an administrative attachment order with respect to
the accounts of Al Ezz El Dekheila for Steel - Alexandria (EZDK) kept at some banks, where the value
of the atiachment order amounted to LE 181.2 Million (without specific particulars regarding the
breakdown of this amount), and the procedures of the said attachment came into force on October 26,
2011. The amounts kept at the banks under attachment reached the amount of LE 66 Million as the
amount in return for the claims made by the Authority pertaining to the sales tax and delay interest
imposed on the materials stevedoring category (the core of a legal dispute that has not been settled yet),
and being the subject matter of Lawsuit No. 797 of 2010 filed by Alexandria Port Authority against to
ensure what may be decided against the port of Alexandria regarding the tax assessment amounts for the
sales tax, the company filed a lawsuit No. 1409 for the year 2011 in implementation of the request to lift
the reservation in the session of September 17, 2012. And a judgment was issued to the effect of
dismissing the case and the company an appeal against the lawsuit No. 747 for 2012, and ihe session is
postponed to June 24, 2013. And adjournment of the session has taken place until the constitutional
action No.54 for the judicial year, No.35 the lawsuit deliberation was settled and the report has not been
filled vet.

The Sales Tax Authority claimed the company to pay the principal tax amounting to LE 104 Million in
addition to tax amounting to LE 127.5 Million till June 28, 2012 in return. for usufruct of the equipment
of mining ores dock related to the handling of ores in El Dekheila Port.

On October 3, 2012, the company paid the principal tax amounting to LE 104 Million along with its
right to maintain a reservation on the settlement until the Sales Tax Authority ceases all the actions taken
against Alexandria Port Authority which in its turn shall cease all the actions taken against the company
including the lift of attachment on the company’s balances at the various banks. The sales tax authority
is of the opinion the necessity of payment the additional tax in order to cease the mentioned procedures..

The company’s management paid an amount of LE 127.5 Million under the account of the additional tax
claimed by virtue of post-dated checks starting from December 31, 2012 for one year. Accordingly,
Alexandria Port Authority notified the banks to lift the administrative attachment imposed on the
Company’s balances at the banks in favour of the Port Authority.

Based on the opinion of its tax advisor, the company’s management is of the opinion that Alexandria
port Authority is not entitled to claim the Company to pay sales tax in return for usufruct of the
equipment of mining ores dock related to the handling of ores in El — Dekheila Port, the occupation of
the yards allocated for this purpose and carrying out the works of operation and maintenance necessary
for such equipment as its not subjected for sales tax, the payment of such amount or amounts by the
company to Alexandria Port Authority, either at the present time or in the future, as a tax in return for the
same service, does not mean its approval of subjecting the service to taxation along with the continuity
of legal proceedings taken by the company to confirm the fact that such service is not subjected to sales
tax.
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Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial yeor Ended December 31, 2021 {(Continued)

The company filled lawsuit No.1609 for year 2014 civil which mumbered 36522 for year 69 J Alexandria
Administrative Judiciary against both of the Port Authority and the Tax Authority requesting refund of
what was collected from company under the name of sales tax for the period beginning from February
15, 2003 till December 31, 2013 in an amount of I.E 249.525 Miilion , On November 28, 2018 session
the court appointed an expert in the lawsuit, He submitted a report in which he concluded the amounts
paid by the company or not to the court because it is a legal issue and the case is postponed to the session
of May 19, 2021. The company also filed a lawsuit No. 8971 for the year 72 J Administrative Judiciary -
Alexandria requesting a refund of 34. 7 K Egyptian pounds, the value of what was collected under the
name of sales tax on the license fee for the period from January 2014 until September 2016, the end of
the general sales tax law. Based on the fact that the license fee for usufruct is not subject to the general
tax on sales, and the lawsuit was referred to the State Commissioners Authority that deposited an opinion
report in which it ended with the assignment of an expert in the case to examine the company’s requests,
the expert proceeded and deposited a report in which he concluded that the amounts paid by the
company were counted, and the lawsuit was postponed to the session of January 26, 2022 for
documentation.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

During the first quarter of year 2020 most of the world countries, including Bgypt, were exposed to the
novel coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic which its effect still exists, and caused disturbances in the
ajority of commercial and economic activities in general. So, it is possible to have a material impact on
the elements of assets, liabilities and its recoverable value thereof, and the results of operations in the
group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the current year and the subsequent periods, in addition to
the potential impact on the provision of raw materials, supplies necessary for production and operations,
the demand on the group’s products, and the available liquidity. Currently, the group is assessing and
determining the size of this impact on its current Consolidated Financial Statements, the management
doesn’t expect in the meantime, based on the latest available information, any significant impact on the
curtent Consolidated Financial Statements and its going concern, due to instability and uncertainty as a
result of the current events, the magnitude of that event depends mainly on the expected time frame, in
which these events and their consequences, arc expected to be ended, which is difficult to determine in
the meantime.

Regarding to the company’s future invesiment plan, and in light of the inevitability of sustainable growth
to maximize investments and deepen production integration, and since the company adopts a growth
strategy based on the constant pursuit of benefiting from available investment opportunities as a primary
way to confinue regional and international presence and to avoid the risks of deflation and stunting, the
BOD agreed in its meeting on December 9, 2021 On the acquisition of 2,287,500 shares, which
represents the share of Mr. Ahmed Hamdy Abu Hashima from the shares of the Egyptian Steel Company
for the management of steel factories Projects (SAE), with a total investment cost of LE 2.5 billion. The
transaction was started during January 2022 according to for what is agreed upon.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently by the group’s companies during all
presented periods in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Foreign currency iranslation

The group maintains its accounts in Egyptian Pound. Transactions denominated in foreign curencics are
translated at foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the financial position date are translated at the foreign exchange rates
prevailing, at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign
currencies are franslated using the exchange rates at that date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences arising on the translation are recognized in the consolidated statement of income at the
financial position date in consolidated statement of income.

The presentation of the financial statements of Al Faz Flat steel (subsidiary company) to be in the
Egyptian pound instead of the US doliar starting from the date 31/12/2020. This is due to the fact that the
Egyptian pound has become the currency in which most of the company’s sales are made as well as the
financing needed for operations.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
Josses. Depreciation - except rolling rings - is charged to the consolidated statement of income on
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of assets. The management of the company regularly
reconsiders the remaining useful lives of the fixed assets in order to determine whether they match the
previously estimated useful lives and if there is a significant difference, the assets depreciation will be
calculated in accordance with the remaining estimated usefut life.
Leased fixed assets (The assets that ownership of the assets will be transferred to the lessee by the end of
the lease contract) are recognized at cost in the beginning of lease contract, after the beginning of the
lease contract the value of the leased fixed assets is determined at cost less the accumulated depreciation
and the accumulated impairment loss and adjusted by any adjustments to the lease liability, the leased
fixed assets is depreciated using straight line method over the estimated useful life of assets which are
mentioned below,
During 2016, modified cost model was adopted by the group, which the cost and accumulated
depreciation for some categories of fixed assets (Machinery and equipment, Vehicles, Furniture and
office equipment, Tools and supplies) are modified using modification factors stated in annex (A) of
EAS No. (13). The increase of net fixed assets which are qualified to modification, were recognized in
other comprehensive income items and was presented as a separate item in equity under the name of
"modification surplus of fixed assets”. The realized portion of modification surplus of fixed assets is
transferred to retained earnings or losses in case of disposal or abandonment of the asset which cualified
for modification or usage (depreciation difference resulting from the adaption of the special accounting
treatment).
The estimated useful life for each type of assets is as follows:

Estimated useful life

Asset Years
Buildings
—  Buildings 25-50
—  Other buildings 8
Machinery and equipment
—  Machinery and equipment 5-25
-~ Rolling rings (machinery and equipment) According to actual use (ERM 5-6)
Vehicles 2-5
Furnitore and office equipment
—  Furpiture and office equipment 3--10
—  Ceniral air conditioning and fixtares 8
Tools and appliances 4-5
Improvements on leased buildings The lower of lease term or assets’ useful lives
Profits or losses resulting from fixed assets disposal are charged to the consolidated statement of
income.

Cost subsequent to acquisition

The replacement cost of an asset component is recognized in the asset cost after the elimination of the
cost of this component when such cost is incurred by the company and in case it is probable that future
economic benefits shall inflow to the group as a result of the replacement of this component conditional
on the ability to measure its cost with a high level of accuracy. However, the other costs are to be
recognized in the consolidated staterent of income as an expense when incurred.

Projecis under consiruction

Projects under construction are recognized initially at cost. Cost includes all expenditures directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Projects under construction
are transferred to fixed assets at its cost when they are completed and are ready for their intended use.

Other asseis

Other assets are licenses cost which are capable of generating future economic benefits.

Other assets are stated at purchased cost including any expenses that are directly attributable to preparing
the asset for its intended use, net of accumulated ameortization and impairment losses.
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Investments in associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at cost.
The Group's investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment
Josses, if any. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s share of income, and expenses
of equity accounted investee, after adjustments to align accounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commences to the date that significant influence ceases. When
the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an
obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate. _

Tn case of the excess in the cost of acquisition over the company share in net fair value of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities as well in associates on the date of acquisition, the goodwill is
recognized as a part of investment book value, thus it will be subjected to the impairment loss on the

investment.

Tnvestments available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are initially measured at fair value and as of the Consolidated Financial
Statements date, the change in the fair value whether gain or loss is recognized directly in equity, except
for impairment losses whick are transferred to profit or loss. When an investment is derecognized, the
cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to profit or loss.

The fair value for available-for-sale invesiments is identified based on the quoted price of the exchange
market in an active market at the consolidated financial position date, except for investments which are
not quoted in a stock exchange in an active market, in this case they are measured at cost net of
impairment loss.

40.8 Investments in treasury bills

40.9

Tnvestments in treasury bills are stated in the financial statements are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured by depreciated cost, the difference between acquiring cost and the realizable
value during the period is amortized from acquiring date to maturity date using actual inferest rate.
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested for impairment at consolidated financial position
date. If events or changes in. circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired, impairment loss
“If any” is charged to the consolidated statement of income for the year.

40.10 Inverdory

Inventory is valued at cost or met sealizable value whichever is lower. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses. Cost is determined as follows:

Raw materials: is valued at its cost up to bringing them to warehouses, and the outgoing is evaluated
using the first in first out method.

Spare parts, materials, and supplies are valued at cost up to bringing them to warel1ouées, and the
outgoing is evaluated using the weighted average method.

Work in process: according to the actual manufacturing cost whick inciudes direct materials and labor
cost in addition to share of indirect manufacturing cost incurred until the last preduction stage reached.

Finished produets: according to the actual manufacturing cost according to costs’ statements.

40.11 Trade and notes receivables and debtors

Trade and notes receivable and debiors are initially stated at their fair value and subsequenily measured
by depreciated cost using the effective interest rate and reduced by estimated impairment losses from its
value.

40,12 Cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise cash balances, banks
current accounts, time deposits, market money fund bills and treasury bills which do not exceed three
months and banks overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management preparing are included as a component of cash equivalents. The consolidated statement of
cash flows is prepared and presented according to indirect method,
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Translation from Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

40.13 Trade and notes payable and creditors
Trade and notes payable and creditors are primary staied at fair value and subsequently measured by
depreciated cost using the actual interest rate.

40.14 Fmpairment loss on assets
A. TFinancial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale
financial asset is calculated by reference 1o its current fair value.
Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.
All impeirment losses are recognized in profit or Joss. Any cunniiative loss in respect of an available-
for-sale financial asset recognized previously in equity is transferred to profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event ocourTing after
the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost and available-
for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is recognized in consolidated ncome
statement. For available-for-sale financial asscts that are equity securities, the reversal is recognized
directly in equity.

B. Non-financial assets
The carrying amouats of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assels, are reviewed at
each reporting daie to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating umit is the smallest identifiable asset group that
generates cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell.
Impairtment losses recognized in prior periods are assessod at Consolidated Financial Statements date
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reviewed if
there has been a change in the estimaics used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying emount does not exceed the camrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss
had been recognized. -

40.15 Interesi-bearing borrewings
Interest-bearing borrowings are secognized itially at fair value less atiributable transaction cosis.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost on an effective
interest basis with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.
Borrowing cost of financing fixed assets are capitalized to finance qualified fixed assets during the
construction period till the asset is reachable for use from the economical view.

40,16 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a fiow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the
offect i3 material, provisions are detexmined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects curent market assessment of the time value of money and, where approprizte, the risks
specific to the liability. The provisions balances are reviewed on a going basis at the financial position
date to disclose the best estimate on the current period.
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Translation firom Arabic

Ezz Steel Company
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year Ended December 31, 2021 (Continued)

46.17 Share capital
Repurchase of share capital
Upon the repurchase of issued capital shares of the company (whether direct way or by using one of its
subsidiaries), it is recognized with the amount paid in return for the repurchase, process which includes
all direct costs and all costs related to repurchasing, as a reduction in owners' equity, and it shall be
classified as treasury stock deducted from the total owners' equity side.

40.18 Revenues
a) Revenue Recognition.
- Revenue is recognized when the Company has transferred to the customer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods and invoice issuance. And it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company, and determine the costs related to
selling and returned goods in trusted way with the inability of the company's management to make
any letter effects on selling goods with the possibility of trusted revenue measuring, In the case of
export sales, the transfer of control is extended to the goods sold in accordance with the shipping
conditions.
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (48) - Revenue from contracis with Trade Receivables

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. {48) defines a comprehensive framework for determining the vafue and timing
of revenue recognition, and this standard replaces the following Egyptian accounting standards {Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. (11) "Revenus” and Egyptian Accounting Standard No. {8) “Construction Coniracts”),

- Revenue is recognized when the Trade Receivables is able to control the goods or services. Determining when
to transfer control over a period of time or at a point in time requires a degree of personal judgment.

- The incremental costs of obtaining a confract with a Trade Receivables are recognized as an asset if the
company expacts to recover those costs. ‘

The potential impact on the financial statements

Due to the nature of the company's activities, in addition to the accounting policies followed, the impact of the
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48 on revenue recognition by the company will be immaterial.

b) Bividends
Dividends income is recognized in the consolidated income statement on the date where the company
has the right to receive investees’ dividends occurred after the date of acquisition.

¢) Imterest income
Interest income is recognized in the profit or loss as it accrues using the effective interest rate method.

40.19 lease contracis
Finance Lease contracts
A leased asset Is recognized in the company's assets, also recognize a liability that represents the present value
of the unpaid finance lease installments in the company’s liability.
Finance lease contracts (sell and lease back)
If the entity (the lessee) transfers the asset to the other entity (the lessor) and leased back the asset, the entity
must determine whether the asset is being accounted for sales transaction or not, in case of not being sales
transaction the lessee must continue to recognize the transferred asset and must recognize a financial liability
equal to the proceeds of the transfer.
Operating iease contracts
Leases are classified as operating leases. Payments in respect of operating leases are charged to statement of
income as expenses payments in on a straight-line basis over the lease term. (Net of value of any lease
discount incentive and rent-free periods).

40.20 Earnings per share
"The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding during the period.
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] 40.21 Income Tax

- Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current income tax and deferred tax. Income fax
is recognized in the consclidated income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at consolidated financial position date.

- Deferred tax is provided using the financial position liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the consolidated financial position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized during the upcoming periods.

—

40.22 Granis related to assets
Grants related to fixed assets are recognized as deferred income and are recognized as income in
accordance with the terms of the grant. Deferred income balance is presented in long-term liabilities
after deduction of deferred income due during the period, which is shown under current liabilities.

40.23 Employee benefits
The company contributes inside Egypt in Social Insurance under the Social Insurance Authority for the
benefits of its personnel in pursuance io the Social Insurance Authority law No. 79 of 1975 and its
amendments. These contributions recorded in the ‘salaries and wages’ accounts, in addition to end of
service benefits as shown in note no.(10).

s

40.24 Financial visk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

*  Credit risk

¥ Liquidity risk

*  Market risk
This note presents information about the Group’s exposurc to each of the above risks, the Group
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and the Group management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group risk
management framework,

The Group risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group,
{o set appropriate risk limits and comtrols, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Group’s activities.

g
1
0

The Group, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

40.24,1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
e cause the other party to incur financial loss.

This risk is mainly resulting from the Group’s frade and other debtors.

= Trade receivable & other debiors
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
. customer. The demographics of the Group’s customer base, including the default risk has less of
an influence on credit risk.
Most of Group’s revenue is represented in sales transaction with many customers with close
values for each customer, hence, there is no concentration of credit risk on specific customers.
- Cash and cash equivalents
8 Credit risk reiating fo cash and cash equivalents - except cash en hand - and financial deposits
arises from the risk that the counterparty becomes insolvent and accordingly is unable to return

- the deposited funds. To mitigate this risk, whenever possibie, the Group conducts transactions
and deposits funds with financial institutions with high investment grade.
il -39-
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4¢.24.2 Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall

— due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient Liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking demage to the Group’s reputation.

. The Group ensures that the sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operationzl expenses for a
suitable period, including the service of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of
extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

40,24.3 Market risk

J Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
- Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk on transactions that are denominated in a currency other
than the respective functional currencies of the Group, primarily the U.S. Dollars (USD) and
Furo. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Group
ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level through purchase or sale of the foreign
currencies with current prices when that is necessary to face un-balanced short term.
- Inferest rate risk
The Group is exposed to market risks as a result of changes in interest rates particularly in
relation to borrowings. Borrowings issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk, Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.
The basic strategy of interest rate risk management is to balance the debt structure with an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings based on the Group’s percepiion
of futiwe interest rate movements.
- Qther market prices risk
This risk arises from changes in the price of available-for-sale investments held by the Group,
the Group’s management monitors the equity instruments in the investments’ portfolio according
to the market and objective valuation of the financial statements related to these shares. Material
investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell
decisions are approved by the Board of Directors, The primary goal of the Group’s investment
strategy is to maximize investment returns and the management consults external advisors in this
regard.
40.24.4 Capital management
The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain invesor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Boards of
Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Group defines as net operating income divided
by total shareholders’ equity, the Board also monitors the level of dividends paid to shareholders.
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the period. The
Group 18 not subject to externally imposed capital requirements,
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Egvotian Accounting Standard No. (47) Financial Instruments

The Egyptian Acceunting Standard No. 47 sets out requirements for the recognition and measurement of financial assets, financial
liahilitles and certain coniracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces EAS No. 25 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and Disclosure, FAS No. 26 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and EAS No. 40 Financial
Instruments; Cisclosures applicable to disclosures for the year 2021.

A- Classification & Measurement Of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities

The new standard requires the company fo evaluate the classification of financial assets in its financial statements according fo the
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the company's relevant business models for a particular class of financial
assets,

Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 no longer has an “available-for-sale” classification for financial assets. The new standard
contains different requirements for financial assets in debt or equity instrumeants.

B- Debi Instruments Are Classified & Measured In One Of The Following Ways:

amortizad cost, for which the effective interest rate method or. will be applied

Fair value through othar comprehensive incomé, with subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit and loss on sale of the
financial asset or

Fair value through profit or loss.

C- Classification & Measurement OFf Investments In Equily Instruments Other Than Those Considered &
Applied To Equity Accounting In One Of The Following Ways:

Fair value through other comprehensive income, with subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit and loss on sale of the
financial asset, or fair value through profit or loss,

The company continues to initially measure financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs upon initial recognition, with the
axception of financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss in accordance with current practices. The ciassification
of the majority of financial dssets was not affected by the transition to Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 on January 1, 2021.
Statement of reclassification made upon transition to Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 explained above In this note, Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. 47 largely maintains the same existing requirements in Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 26 for
classification and measurement of existing liabilities.

The application of Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 did not have a material impact on the company's accounting policies
related to financial liabilites and derivative financial instruments. ‘

D= Impairment

The Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 uses the expected credit loss model. Which replaces the actual loss model in the
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 26, where there was no need to create a provision for doubtful debts, except in cases where a
loss actually ocourred. On the contrary, the expected credit loss model requires the company to recognize a provision for doubtful
debts on all financial assets carvied at amortized cost, as well as debt instruments classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income since the first recognition, regardless of whether the loss occurred.
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